
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2012 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 PRESENTATION 
 Ms. Linda Merchant- Masonbrink - Ohio EPA Division of Drinking and Ground Water 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
  
  

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of the minutes from the March 6, 2012 Regular Piqua City Commission and the  
March 8, 2012 Piqua City Commission Worksession 

 
 NEW BUSINESS 
 

2. ORD. NO. 8-12 (1st Reading) 
An Ordinance amending Sections 154.098 and 154.100 of the City of Piqua Code of 
Ordinances to modify permit, general and display period requirements for temporary; attached 
and detached sign types 

 
3. RES. NO. R-62-12  

A Resolution fixing the time and place for a Public Hearing on a renewal application to  
designate a certain property located within the City of Piqua as an agricultural district 

 
4. RES. NO. R-63-12  (Public Hearing) 

A Resolution approving the renewal application for placement of farmland in an agricultural 
district filed by Louise I. Cromes for parcel numbers N44-076845, N44-077116, N44-077120 
and N44-099300 in the City of Piqua 

 
5. RES. NO. R-64-12 (Public Hearing) 

A Resolution approving the renewal application for placement of farmland in an agricultural 
district filed by James A. Hiegel for parcel #N44-095820 in the City of Piqua 

 
6. RES. NO. R-65-12 

A Resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2012 Community Housing Improvement Program 
application and authorizing the City Manager to submit the application 

 
7. RES. NO. R-66-12 

A Resolution accepting the recommendations of the Tax Incentive Review Council of the 
City of Piqua for the purpose of the administration of the City of Piqua’s Enterprise Zone 
Program, as required by Section 5709.85(C )(1) of the Ohio Revised Code 
 
 



 2

 
8. RES. NO. R-67-12 

A Resolution appointing a member to the Community Diversity Committee 
  

9. RES. NO. R-68-12 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Community Diversity Committee 
 

10. RES. NO. R-69-12   
A Resolution appointing a member to the Energy Board  

 
11. RES. NO. R-70-12   

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into a Mutual Aid Agreement with the 
Ohio Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network 

 
12. RES. NO. R-71-12  

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Best Equipment Co., 
Inc., for the purchase of a 2012 Sewer Mainline CCTV Inspection Unit 
 

OTHER 
Monthly Reports – January 2012 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
a. Economic Development Update 
b. Department Update – Utilities Department – Mr. Dave Burtner 
 
COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 

 
ADJOURNMENT 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday March 6, 2012 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Wilson. Absent: None. 
 
PROCLAMATION – American Red Cross Month in the City of Piqua 
 
Mayor Fess read the proclamation and presented it to Red Cross Executive Director Scott Miller. 
 
PROCLAMATION – CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION – CHRISTIN LIBBEE 
 
Mayor Fess read the proclamation and presented it to Christin Libbee. 
 
Christin won first place in writing for the Martin Luther King Jr. Art, Writing and Multimedia Contest 
sponsored by the Ohio Civil Rights Commission for grades 6-12. 
 

 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 
Approval of the minutes from the February 21, 2012 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that the minutes of the Regular 
Piqua City Commission Meeting of February 7, 2012 be approved. Voice vote, Aye:  Fess, Wilson, 
Martin, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Old Business 
 
ORD. NO. 4-12-Amended (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance amending Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule I of the Piqua 
Code, relating to Speed Limits 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall stated this is the 3rd reading for Ordinance No. 4-12 that was amended at 
the February 21, 2012 meeting to allow the modification of the speed limit to 25 MPH on the 
following sections of roadway: Park Avenue between Marymont and Broadway, Broadway 
between Park Avenue and W. Ash Street, and W. Ash Street between Broadway and N. Downing 
Street.  It was stated that Ordinance No. 4-12 should be defeated as Ordinance No. 7-12 is a new 
Ordinance with the amendment made and a language change that was also requested by the 
Commission 
. 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 4-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin to adopt Ordinance No. 4-12. 
Roll call, Aye: None.  Nay: Fess, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, and Martin.  Ordinance No. 4-12 was 
defeated by a 0-5 vote.  Mayor Fess declared Ordinance No. 4-12 defeated. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 7-12  (1st Reading) 
 
An Ordinance amending Piqua Codified Ordinance Section 77.01 Traffic Schedules adopted in 
accordance with City of Piqua Code of Ordinances Chapter 77  



 2

 
Ms. Wall stated the changes that were included in the Ordinance, and asked that the Commission 
waive the three reading rule on Ordinance No. 7-12 since it is really the 3rd reading. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 7-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin that the rule requiring 
Ordinance No. 7-12 be read fully and distinctly on three separate days be suspended. Roll call, 
Aye: Martin, Fess Wilson, Terry, and Vogt.  Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 7-12 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Terry and Fess.  Nay: Wilson. Motion carried on 4-1 vote to 
adopt Ordinance No 7-12. Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 7-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-32-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Board of Zoning Appeals 
 

      City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-32-12 appoints Steve Reindel to the Board of 
      Zoning Appeals for a term of five (5) years to expire on March 2, 2017. 
 

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-32-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-32-12 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Martin, Wilson, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-32-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-33-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Civil Service Commission 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-33-12 appoints Evelyn Mahrt to fill the unexpired term 
of Paul Jackson as a member of the Civil Service Commission to expire on March 1, 2014. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-33-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-33-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, and Fess.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-33-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-34-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Civil Service Commission 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-34-12 appoints Howard Bruce Hogston to the Civil 
Service Commission for a three (3) year term to expire on March 1, 2015. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-34-12 

 



 3

Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-34-12 be 
adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Vogt, Fess, Martin, and Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-34-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-35-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Community Diversity Committee 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No.R-35-12 appoints Terry Wright to the Community Diversity  
Committee for a two (2) year term to expire on March 1, 2014. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-35-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-35-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Martin, Wilson and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-35-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-36-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Community Diversity Committee 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-36-12 appoints Roger Hartley to the Community 

Diversity  
Committee for a two (2) year term to expire on March 1, 2014. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-36-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-36-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Vogt, Fess, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-36-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-37-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Downtown District Design Review Board 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-37-12 appoints James C. Oda to the Downtown 
District Design review Board for a three (3) year term to expire on March 1, 2015 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-37-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-37-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Martin, Wilson, Terry, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-37-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-38-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Energy Board 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-38-12 appoints David Zimmerman to the Energy Board 
for a term of five (5) years to expire on March 1, 2017. 
 
 



 4

 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-38-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-38-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, and Fess.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-38-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-39-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Energy Board 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-39-12 appoints Roger Hartley to the Energy Board for 
a term of five (5) years to expire on March 1, 2017 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-39-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-39-12 
be adopted, as amended.  Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Vogt, Fess, and Martin.  Nay: None.  
Motion carried unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-39-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-40-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Park Board 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-40-12 appoints Catherine Oda to the Park Board for a 
term of five (5) years to expire on March 1, 2017. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-40-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-40-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Vogt, Fess, Martin, and Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-40-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-41-12 
 
A Resolution appointing one member to the Park Board 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-41-12 appoints James Cruse to the Park Board for a 
five (5) year term to expire on March 1, 2017. 

 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-41-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-41-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-41-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-42-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Tree Committee 
 



 5

City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-42-12 appoints Regina Favorite to the Tree Committee 
for a four (4) year term to expire on March 1, 2016. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-42-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-42-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-42-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-43-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Tree Committee 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-43-12 appoints Steven Trostel to the Tree Committee 
for a four (4) year term to expire on March 1, 2016. 
 

      Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-43-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-43-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-43-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-44-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Stormwater Utility Board 

 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-44-12 appoints John Monroe to the Stormwater Utility 
Board for a one (1) year term to expire on August 1, 2013. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-44-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-44-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-44-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-45-12 
 
 A Resolution appointing a member to the Stormwater Utility Board 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-45-12 appoints David Zimmerman to fill the unexpired 
term (3-year) of Joe Drapp to the Stormwater Utility Board to expire on August 1, 2013 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-45-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-45-12 
be adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Vogt, Fess, Martin, and Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-45-12 adopted. 
 
 
 



 6

RES. NO. R-46-12 
 
A Resolution fixing the time and place for a Public Hearing on a renewal application to designate   
certain properties located within the City of Piqua as an Agricultural District 
 
Economic Development Director Bill Murphy stated Resolution No. R-46-12 sets the Public 
Hearing at the request of the property owner James A. Hiegel to designate his property known as 
Parcel N44-095820 (9.28 acres) as an agricultural district.  The Ohio Revised Code 929.02 
requires the City Commission hold a public hearing every five years for purpose of considering the 
application. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-46-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-46-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-46-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R- 47-12 
 
A Resolution fixing the time and place for a Public Hearing on a renewal application to designate    
certain properties located within the City of Piqua as Agricultural Districts 
 
Economic Development Director Bill Murphy stated Resolution No. R-47-12 sets the Public 
Hearing at the request of the property owner Louise Cromes to designate her properties known as 
Parcel N44-077116 (28.516 acres), N44-76845 (89.428 acres), N44-077120 (37.700 acres, and 
N44-099300 (1.750 acres) as agricultural districts.  The Ohio Revised Code 929.02 requires the 
City Commission hold a public hearing every five years for purpose of considering the application. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-47-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-47-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Martin, Vogt, Terry, and Fess.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-47-12 adopted. 
 
Power Systems Director Ed Krieger explained the next fourteen (14) Resolutions No. R-48-12 
through Resolution No. R-61-12 are awarding contracts for the construction of the Power System 
Service Center.  The current Power Plant may be demolished as early as 2013 and would require 
the movement of equipment, tools and inventory currently housed at the location. The Power 
System is debt-free and cash reserves are available to fund a majority of the construction costs.  
 
The City Commission approved the purchase of two properties for the Power System Service 
Center in February 2010, in December 2011 a contract for design and construction management 
services with Wenco, Inc. was approved, and in July of 2011 a contract with Star-Ex, Inc. for 
completion of early site work activities with construction was completed.  In August of 2011 City 
employees completed the relocation and extension of water, wastewater and stormwater utilities 
to the site, and in October of 2011 Star Ex and Wall Brothers competed improvements to Hemm 
Avenue. 
 
Power System staff worked with Wenco management to utilize a construction approach that would 
allow as many local companies to participate in the project as much as possible.  Fifteen (15) 
separate bid packages were developed and local contractors were targeted to encourage local 
participation. As a result of the bidding, companies from Piqua and the surrounding area are 
recommended as the successful bidders for one or more of the individual bid packages as detailed 
in Wenco’s construction contractor recommendations and associated final bid tab results. 



 7

Mr. Krieger gave a brief explanation of each of the contracts and the awarding of the bids in 
conjunction with Wenco’s Construction Contractor Recommendations.  
 
Resolution No. R-48-12 (General Trades and Steel) awarded to Baumer Construction out of 
Minster, Ohio in the amount of $1,110,900. 
 
Resolution No. R-49-12 (Concrete) awarded to Metcom out of Bradford, Ohio in the amount of 
$503,250. 
 
Resolution No. R-50-12 (Finish Site Work) awarded to K & S Excavating out of Troy, Ohio in the 
amount of $316,800. 
 
Resolution No. R-51-12 (Overhead Doors) awarded to Dayton Door Sales out of Dayton, Ohio in 
the amount of $51,300. 
 
Resolution No. R-52-12 (Painting) awarded to Ohio Valley Painting, out of Dayton, Ohio in the 
amount of $57,120. 
 
Resolution No. R-53-12 (Flooring) awarded to Titan Commercial Flooring, out of Clayton, Ohio in 
the amount of $84,029. 
 
Resolution No. R-54-12 (Sprinkler System) awarded to Dayton Fire Protection, out of Tipp City, 
Ohio in the amount of $110,040. 
 
Resolution No. R-55-12 (Electrical) awarded to Koester Electric, out of Coldwater, Ohio in the 
amount of $434,400. 
 
Resolution No. R-56-12 (Plumbing & HVAC) awarded to Slagle Mechanical out of Sidney, Ohio in 
the amount of $762,450. 
 
Resolution No. R- 57-12 (Crane System) awarded to Crane 1 Services, out of Franklin, Ohio in the 
amount of $58,279. 
 
Resolution No. R-58-12 (Network Equipment, Cabling & Terminations, Multimedia Systems) 
awarded to Low Voltage Solutions, out of Sidney, Ohio in the amount of $94,026. 
 
Resolution No. R-59-12 (Video Display Wall) awarded to Critical Space Solutions, out of Norcross, 
GA in the amount of $152,329. 
 
Resolution No. R-60-12 (Security System) awarded to ADT Security Services, out of Cincinnati, 
Ohio in the amount of $213,305. 
 
Resolution No. R-61-12 (Automatic Transfer Switch) awarded to Brownstown Electric Supply, out 
of Bellefontaine, Ohio in the amount of $72,319. 
 
Also awarded but did not require Commission approval were contracts to: 
 
(Aluminum Storefront) awarded to Hemm’s Glass, of Piqua, Ohio in the amount of $20,270. 
 
(Landscaping) awarded to Casto Landscaping, of Piqua, Ohio in the amount of $19,555. 
 
RES. NO. R-48-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Baumer Construction for the Power System Service Center 
Steel, General Trades and Masonry Bid Packages 
 
 
 



 8

Public Comment 
 
Tom Westerheide, President of Westerheide Development of Sidney, Ohio came forward and 
voiced his opinion on the award of the framing and pre-engineered building installations. Mr. 
Westerheide felt his company was the low bidder and should have been awarded the bid.  It was 
noted that Baumer Construction would be using their own crews for the steel erection, and have 
had more experience with this size of project. 
 
Dean McGillvary of Wenco Inc. came forward and explained how the bid packages were compiled 
and how they determined who received the bid.  
 
There was discussion of the bid process and if Mr. Westerheide would have only had one bid 
would there been a different outcome. Mr. McGillvary further explained the reason for going with 
Baumer Construction in this instance. 
 
Mr. Krieger stated he understands Mr. Westerheide’s concern but they felt they should accept 
Wenco’s direction, stating this is the reason Wenco was hired as they have been doing this for a 
very long period of time. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-48-12 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Martin, Terry, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-48-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-49-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Metcon for the Power System Service Center Concrete Bid 
Package 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-49-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-49-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Martin, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-49-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-50-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to K & S Excavating for the Power System Service Center Finish 
Site Work Bid Package 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-50-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-50-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Fess, Wilson, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-50-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-51-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Dayton Door Sales for the Power System Service Center 
Overhead Doors Bid Package 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-51-12. 
 



 9

Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-51-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion 
carried unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-51-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-52-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Ohio Valley Painting for the Power System Service Center 
Painting Bid Package 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-52-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-52-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Martin, Terry, Vogt, and Fess.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-52-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-53-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Titan Flooring for the Power System Service Center Flooring 
Bid Package 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-53-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-53-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Martin, Terry, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-53-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-54-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Dayton Fire Protection for the Power System Service Center 
Sprinkler System Bid Package 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-54-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-54-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Wilson, Martin, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-54-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-55-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Koester Electric for the Power System Service Center Electric 
Bid Package 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-55-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-55-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Terry, Vogt, Fess, Wilson, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-55-12 adopted. 
 
 
 



 10

RES. NO. R-56-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Slagle Mechanical for the Power System Service Center 
Plumbing and HVAC Bid Packages 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-56-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-56-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Terry, Vogt, Fess and Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-56-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-57-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Crane 1 Services for the Power System Service Center Crane 
System Bid Package 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-57-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-57-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Martin, Terry, Vogt, and Fess.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-57-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-58-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Low Voltage Solutions for the Power System Service Center 
Network Equipment, Cabling & Terminations and Multimedia Systems for the Conference Rooms 
Bid Packages 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-58-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-58-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Martin, Terry, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-58-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-59-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Critical Space Solutions for the Power System Service Center 
Video Display Wall Bid Package 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-59-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-59-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Wilson, Martin, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-59-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. 60-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to ADT Security Services for Security Systems in the Power 
System Service Center 
 



 11

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-60-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-60-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Terry, Vogt, Fess, Wilson, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-60-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. 61-12 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Brownstown Electric Supply for the purchase of an S&C 
Automatic Transfer Switch for the Power System Service Center 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-61-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-61-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Terry, Vogt, Fess, and  Wilson.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-61-12 adopted. 
 
Public Comment 
 
This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide 
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions 
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.” 
 
Steve Stiefel came forward and announced on March 15-18, 2012 the annual Race Cars and 
Future Stars event will be held at the Miami Valley Centre Mall, and invited citizens to come out 
and see the cars and drivers. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
Economic Development Update – Mr. Bill Murphy 
 
Mr. Murphy gave a brief update on recent economic development. Ohio captured the covent 
Governors Cup that is a Site Selection Magazine annual study where they look at the number of 
projects by state, and Ohio was number one this year. Locally the City of Dayton MSA, which 
includes Montgomery, Miami, and Preble counties, was ranked #2 for mid-size metro areas, and 
Springfield was ranked #2 in the small metro area. This is great news for the region with the 
automotive industry playing a big part in the growth. 
 
Jobs Ohio has $2.5 billion dollars in finances; this is equity injection they propose to give local 
companies to help them grow in the State of Ohio this year.  This is financed largely through 
Liquor Tax proceeds, and by putting equity into companies to try and get a quick turnaround within 
one year or less. 
 
The Ohio Tax Credit Authority approved a six-year, 50% job creation tax credit for Hartzell Air 
Movement in the amount of $365,000 for the project.  A ground breaking is planned for the new 
Hartzell Air Movement on Thursday, March 8, 2012 at 1:30 P.M. 
 
Department Update – Distribution Department Update – Mr. Ed Krieger 
 
Ed Krieger explained the Rate Comparisons between the Residential and Commercial/Industrial 
accounts. Graphs were shown with the Ohio Average Revenue per kWh in 2010 for Residential, 
Commercial/Industrial accounts, and also for the Local Utilities-Average Revenue per kWh for 
2010. 
 



 12

Several AMP Projects were highlighted. AMP-Fremont Energy Center, the Prairie State  & Hydro 
Progress ,Cannelton Progress, Meldahl Progress, Smithland Progress, and the Willow Island 
Progress. 
 
Mr. Krieger further explained the Reliability Performance by a graph with the ratio of total customer 
minutes that service was available divided by the total customer minutes demanded in a time 
period from January through December in 2008-2011. Also included was a graph showing the 
average duration of customer outage dividing the sum of the customer minutes off by the number 
of customer who experienced long interruptions. Finally a graph showing the number of times a 
customer is interrupted(less than one minute), averaged over all customers.  This was then 
divided by total customer interruptions for an average of total customers served for the period from 
January through December 2008-2011.  
 
Mayor Fess thanked Mr. Krieger for his informative update. 
 
City Manager Huff stated the Ohio EPA has endorsed the City of Piqua Drinking Water Source 
Protection Plan.  Further stating they acknowledged it is an exemplarily report that can serve as a 
model for other Ohio Surface Water Systems. City Manager Huff congratulated the Utility and the 
Water Treatment Departments for their work on getting the plan endorsed.   
 
City Manager Huff stated the City Commission Monthly Work Session is scheduled for Thursday, 
March 8 at 7:30 in the Commission Chambers. The topic is strictly on whether to build a new water 
treatment plant, and will be providing the Commissioners with detailed information; this is not 
about a joint water plant project at this time. The joint water option will be presented at a later 
Work Session, stated City Manager Huff.  Information was given to the Commissioners in the form 
of a handout at the beginning of the Commission Meeting for them to review before the Work 
Session on Thursday. 
 
Commissioner Comment 

 
Commissioner Wilson stated there were quite a few board appointments on this agenda, and it is 
very important that citizens continue to apply for these board openings as they occur in the future.  
 
Commissioner Wilson also reminded citizens of the change in the speed limit on Park Avenue, and 
ask if it would be possible to step up the patrol in that area to watch for trucks still following the old 
St. Rt. 185.   Police Chief Jamison stated they plan on monitoring the area, and will be giving a 
grace period for citizens to get use to the change in the speed limit on Park Avenue.  
 
Mayor Fess inquired about signage stating no trucks.  Chief Jamison stated trucks know where 
they can go and some of the larger straight trucks will still need to use the street to make 
deliveries. 
 
Commissioner Terry reminded citizens the Putt-Putt is set up at the Miami Valley Centre for the 
third year in a row, and is a fund raiser for the Salvation Army. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated the Commissioners attended the recent Energy Board meeting and 
were given a lot of information regarding all of the Service Center contracts that were approved.  
Commissioner Terry further stated the Energy Board was unanimous in approving the contracts.  
Ed Krieger and his staff have done due diligence on getting the project ready to proceed to the 
next step. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated there was an article in the newspaper about the Brownfield Grants, 
which might be limited for the State of Ohio.  The ones that were listed in Miami County were for 
Piqua, Piqua, Piqua. Commissioner Terry further stated our grant writers are being very diligent in 
securing these grants for the City of Piqua, and she appreciates everyone responsible for helping 
Piqua to secure these grants.  
 



 13

Commissioner Vogt stated he received an email about broken glass on the Bike Path behind the 
Kroger Store on Covington Avenue, further stating there is also a lot of trash that has blown 
around in there area also. Commissioner Vogt asked citizens to please pick up their trash. 
 
Commissioner Martin thanked all of the volunteers who have volunteered to serve on the various 
Boards and Committees for the City of Piqua.   
 
Commissioner Martin also reminded citizens to patronize the local businesses in the construction 
area during the reconstruction of E. Ash Street.  
 
Mayor Fess reminded citizens there are detour signs to get around the E. Ash Street 
Reconstruction Project. The Shawnee residents have voiced their concern over the number of 
trucks using the Shawnee area to get around the construction zone. 
 
Mayor Fess stated she is excited about the ground breaking at the Hartzell Air Movement facility 
on Thursday.  This shows that things are beginning to pickup and this is uplifting for the 
community, stated Mayor Fess. 
 
Mayor Fess announced that the Dancing with the Piqua Stars sponsored by the Piqua Arts 
Council is scheduled for March 31, 2012. An afternoon performance has been added due to the 
sell out of the evening show. Tickets are still available for the 2:30 afternoon performance at 
Reedmore Hallmark, and thanked all of the dancers for getting out there and performing for us. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn into Executive     
Session at 9:15 P.M. to consider pending or imminent litigation. Roll call: Aye, Terry, Vogt, Martin, 
Wilson, and Fess. Nay, None. Motion carried. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from Executive 
Session at 9:45 P.M.   Voice vote: Aye, Martin, Terry, Vogt, Fess, and Wilson. Nay, None. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
             
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular 
Piqua City Commission Meeting at 9:46 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and 
Terry. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
                  
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR  
  
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 8-12 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 154.098 and 154.100 OF THE CITY 
OF PIQUA CODE OF ORDINANCES TO MODIFY PERMIT, GENERAL, AND 
DISPLAY PERIOD REQUIREMENTS FOR TEMPORARY; ATTACHED AND 
DETACHED SIGN TYPES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Charter Section 154.141 directs the 

Commission to take action on zoning amendment recommendations received 
from the Planning Commission at their next regularly scheduled meeting; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has studied a proposed 
amendment to the zoning code amending sections 154.098 and 154.100 of the 
City of Piqua Code of Ordinances to modify permit, general, and display period 
requirements for temporary; attached and detached sign types, as set forth in 
Exhibit A included herewith; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has conducted a public hearing 
and made a report of its findings; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has submitted a recommendation 
to the City Commission; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Piqua City Commission, a 
majority of its members concurring that: 

SEC. 1.  That the City of Piqua hereby amends sections 154.098 and 154.100 
of the City of Piqua Code of Ordinances as set forth in Exhibit A included 
herewith (deleted text lined through and proposed text bold and underlined): 
SEC. 2.  All other sections of Chapter 154 of the City of Piqua Code of 

Ordinances not amended herein shall remain in effect as is. 
SEC. 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 

earliest period allowed by law.        
                                                
            
      _____________________________ 

   LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: __________________________ 
 
ATTEST: __________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
       CLERK OF COMMISSION  



 

 

City Commission Agenda      Item #2       
Staff Report 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
3/20/2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

An Ordinance Amending Sections 154.098 and 154.100 of the City of Piqua 
Code of Ordinances to Modify Permit, General, and Display Period 
Requirements for Temporary; Attached and Detached Sign Types 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 
Department: Development Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 Public Hearing 

 
Ordinance #: No. 8-12 

 
Resolution #: 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Law Director 
Asst. City Manager/Development Other: Planning Commission  

  
 

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

The proposed amendment will modify the zoning code sign standards as follows: 
1) Modify the permit requirements to require a permit for commercial message temporary 

sign types (No fee for permit).   
2) Eliminate height restrictions on attached temporary sign types and eliminate the 

detached banner sign standards from the general requirements section altogether and 
reference attached banner sign standards.  

3) Reduce the time required to lapse between on-premise commercial message temporary 
sign display periods; and, waive the maximum display period limit when business 
location is adjacent to the public street right of way closure. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 
Expenditure $: 0 
Narrative:  The proposed permit requirement will provide a record of the start date for 

display period duration and frequency for tracking purposes; the general 
requirements modifications will relax the attached banner sign height 
limitations and the elimination of the detached standards will eliminate 
confusion concerning which standards are applicable; and, the adjustment 
to the display period limits will give businesses greater flexibility in how 
they use the temporary commercial sign display allowance, and an extended 
display period during street closures. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the ordinance and adopt the proposed amendments 
2. Reject the ordinance and provide direction  
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Mar 13, 2012 – Planning Commission public hearing 
Mar 20, 2012 – City Commission 1st reading of Ordinance 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Approve the ordinance to amend temporary sign standards  

 



EXHIBIT A 

§ 154.098 PERMIT REQUIRED; EXCEPTIONS.  

(A) Permit required. 

(1) No person shall locate or maintain any sign, or cause a sign to be located or maintained, 
unless all provisions of this subchapter have been met. To assure compliance with these 
regulations, a sign permit issued pursuant to this chapter shall be required for each sign, unless 
specifically exempted in this section. 

(2) A sign initially approved for which a permit has been issued shall not be modified, altered or 
replaced, nor shall design elements of any building or lot upon which the sign is maintained be 
modified, altered or replaced if any design element constituted a basis for approval of the sign, 
unless a new or amended permit is obtained consistent with these regulations. 

(3) When applying for a sign permit the following materials shall be provided: 

(a) A completed application and the permit fee for each requested sign. 

(b) Permanent attached signs: 

(1) A dimensioned site plan, drawn to scale, showing all existing buildings and other 
improvements, and proposed sign location(s) on the subject property, the adjacent private 
properties and public right-of-way. 

(2) Detail drawing(s) of each sign face in color and drawn to scale, showing the sign copy, and 
with the sign area highlighted and calculated in accordance with this code. Provide additional 
details as necessary to verify the sign design is in compliance with the applicable building and 
electrical codes. 

(3) Elevation drawing(s) of the building facade on which the sign will be placed, drawn to scale, 
showing the proposed location of the sign, and including dimensions from the established ground 
grade to the bottom of the sign, and the length of the building frontage. 

(c) Permanent detached signs: 

(1) A dimensioned site plan, drawn to scale, showing all existing buildings and other 
improvements, and proposed sign location(s) on the subject property, the adjacent private 
properties and public right-of-way. 

(2) Detail drawing(s) of each sign face in color and drawn to scale, showing the sign copy, and 
with the sign area highlighted and calculated in accordance with this code. Provide additional 
details as necessary to verify the sign design is in compliance with the applicable building and 
electrical codes. Unless waived by the enforcing official, include, foundation and anchoring 
drawing(s) and wind load calculations for the proposed sign(s). 



EXHIBIT A 

(3) Landscaping plan drawn to scale, with the types and location of each living plant material 
and non-living materials or objects clearly identified. 

(‘97 Code, § 150.704)  

(B) Exceptions. The following shall be permitted subject to the provisions of this subchapter and 
shall not require a permit. Exemptions from the necessity of securing a permit shall not be 
construed to relieve the owner of the sign involved from responsibility for its erection and 
maintenance in accordance with all the other provisions of this code. 

(1) The repainting, refacing, changing of parts and maintenance of signs shall not be deemed 
alterations requiring a sign permit, subject to the provisions stated in division (A) of this section. 

(2) The following sign types as defined in section § 154.096 shall not require a permit, subject to 
the provisions stated in sections §§ 154.099 through 154.103: 

(a) Temporary off/on premise signs; noncommercial message signs. 

(b) Secondary signs. 

(c) Special signs. 

(‘97 Code, § 150.705) (Ord. 42-96, passed 9-17-96; Am. Ord. 25-06, passed 10-17-06) Penalty, 
see § 154.999 

 

  



EXHIBIT A 

§ 154.100 TEMPORARY; ATTACHED AND DETACHED SIGNS. 

(A) Intent. The intent of this section is to recognize the rights of an individual to display 
noncommercial messages protected by the First Amendment, and to recognize the individual or 
entity who occasionally desires to display a temporary commercial message in conjunction with 
a permitted land use, and to provide the time, place, and manner limitations allowing certain sign 
types for these purposes. It is further intended to recognize the negative affect temporary signs 
can have on the attractiveness of a community, including the deterioration of the natural 
environment, the clutter temporary signs contribute to the landscape, the distractions and 
obstructions this sign type may cause to motorist, and the hazards that the aforementioned 
concerns may cause. Thus, this section is intended to establish regulations that allow temporary 
signs without their becoming a nuisance to the community. 

(B) Permitted temporary sign types. Any of the temporary sign types indicated, with a message 
type the same as the message type heading under which the sign type is listed, shall be permitted 
as an accessory use to a lawfully established principal, special or nonconforming use conducted 
on the premise, subject to the limitations included in this code.  

(1) Noncommercial message. 

(a) Off-premise. 

1. Banner sign. 

2. Ground sign. 

3. Monument sign. 

4. Pole sign. 

5. Window sign. 

(b) On-premise. 

1. Banner sign. 

2. Ground sign. 

3. Monument sign. 

4. Pole sign. 

5. Window sign. 

(2) Commercial message.  



EXHIBIT A 

(a) Off-premise. 

1. Ground sign. 

2. Monument sign. 

(b) On-premise. 

1. Banner sign. 

2. Ground sign. 

3. Monument sign. 

4. Window sign. 

(c) Off/on-premise. 

1. Banner sign. 

2. Ground sign. 

3. Monument sign. 

4. Pole sign. 

5. Window sign. 

(C) Height, area, and setback regulations. 

(1) General requirements for temporary signs. 

Sign Type Maximum 
Height 

Maximum 
Sign Area 

Maximum 
Lot Area 

Minimum 
Setback from 
Front Lot 
Line 

Minimum 
Setback from 
Side and Rear Lot 
Lines 

Banner sign; attached None 24 sq. feet < 1 acre N/A N/A 

Banner sign; attached 12 feet None 32 sq. feet 1 acre to 5 
acres 

N/A N/A 

Banner sign; attached 24 feet None 50 sq. feet > 5 acres N/A N/A 

Banner sign; 
detached 

8 feet 24 sq. feet < 1 acre 10 feet 5 feet 

Banner sign; 12 feet 32 sq. feet 1 acre to 5 20 feet 5 feet 



EXHIBIT A 

detached acres 

Banner sign; 
detached 

24 feet 50 sq. feet > 5 acres 50 feet 5 feet 

Ground sign; 
monument sign; pole 
sign 

4 feet 6 sq. feet < 1 acre 2 feet 5 feet 

Ground sign; 
monument sign; pole 
sign 

6 feet 12 sq. feet 1 acre to 5 
acres 

10 feet 5 feet 

Ground sign; 
monument sign; pole 
sign 

8 feet 32 sq. feet > 5 acres 20 feet  5 feet 

Window sign First floor 
windows 

50% of a 
building’s 
total window 
surface area 

N/A N/A N/A 

(D) Other regulations.  

(1) Location. 

(a) Temporary signs shall be permitted on the building face or in the yard adjacent to any 
building elevation facing a street, parking lot, drive through lane, or service drive, subject to the 
setbacks established by this section of the code and provided the sign face is oriented towards the 
same street, parking lot, drive through lane, or service drive to which it is adjacent.  

(b) Banners authorized for display on utility poles by the city manager shall be permitted.  

(2) Number. The maximum allowable number of temporary signs shall be in accordance with the 
following limitations: 

(a) Off-premise noncommercial message signs – Unlimited. 

(b) On-premise noncommercial message signs – Unlimited. 

(c) Off-premise commercial message signs – No more than one sign may be displayed at any one 
time on a single lot.  

(d) On-premise commercial message banner, ground, or monument signs – No more than one 
sign per 100 feet of property frontage may be displayed at any one time on a single lot.  

(e) Off/on-premise commercial message signs - No more than one sign may be displayed at any 
one time on a single lot. When a structure or business location to be advertised for sale or lease 



EXHIBIT A 

or rental has an obsolete attached or an obsolete detached sign accessory to the structure or 
business for sale or lease or rental, the obsolete sign shall be used to advertise the business for 
sale or lease or rental, and no temporary off/on-premise commercial message sign shall be 
permitted for this purpose. 

(3) Landscaping. None required for this sign type. 

(4) Period of display.  

(a) Noncommercial message signs may be displayed for an unlimited period of time subject to 
the provisions included in § 154.100(D)(4)(d). 

(b) Off-premise commercial message temporary signs and off/on-premise commercial message 
signs may be displayed for the duration of the event or activity for which the sign is advertising 
provided all temporary signs are removed at such time the event or activity it advertises is 
discontinued or the sign message becomes obsolete. 

(c) On-premise commercial message signs may be displayed for a period of time not to exceed 
90 consecutive days not more than three times in any 12-month period, provided a period of time 
equal to the 90 days has lapsed since the most recent past display of a temporary on-premise 
commercial message sign at the same location for any message displayed has lapsed; or, if the 
location of the temporary on-premise commercial message sign is adjacent to a street right of 
way closure the temporary on-premise commercial message sign may be displayed for a period 
of time equal to the duration of the street right of way closure.   

(d) All temporary commercial message signs shall be removed at such time when the event or 
activity the sign advertises is discontinued or the sign message becomes obsolete. 

(‘97 Code, § 150.707) (Ord. 42-96, passed 9-17-96; Am. Ord. 25-06, passed 10-17-06; Am. Ord. 
20-08, passed 7-7-08) Penalty, see § 154.999 

 



                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-62-12 
                                          REVISED 3-20-2012 

 
          A RESOLUTION FIXING THE TIME AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC 
          HEARING ON A RENEWAL APPLICATION TO DESIGNATE A 
          CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF PIQUA 
          AS AN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
 
 

WHEREAS, Ellen J. Allenbaugh  Steven H. Allenbaugh has applied to 
designate real property located as 2709 Piqua Clayton Road Out lot 314 on Spiker 
Road, Piqua, Ohio, Parcel Number N44-100640 (71.610 acres) Parcel Number N44-
100740 (65.00 acres) as an agricultural district; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code 929.02 requires that the Commission hold a 
public hearing for the purpose of considering the application; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: A public hearing shall be held in the Commission Chambers of 
the Piqua Municipal Government Complex (201 West Water Street) at 7:30 P.M. on 
Tuesday, April 3, 2012, to consider the renewal application described herein; and 

 
SEC. 2: The Commission Clerk is hereby directed to cause the 

publication of notice of said public hearing in the Piqua Daily Call; 
 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 







                                            PUBLIC HEARING 
 
                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-63 -12 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RENEWAL 
APPLICATION FOR PLACEMENT OF FARMLAND 
IN AN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT FILED BY 
LOUISE I. CROMES FOR PARCEL NUMBERS 
N44-076845, N44-077116, N44-077120 AND 
N44-099300 IN THE CITY OF PIQUA 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Louise I. Cromes has submitted an application to designate 
parcels # N44-076845, N44-077116, N44-077120 and N44-099300 (attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A”) as an agricultural use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, parcels # N44-076845, N44-077116, N44-077120, and N44-
099300 are devoted exclusively for agricultural use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the placement of this property in an agricultural use district will 
not adversely impact the City of Piqua’s development needs; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The application to place parcels # N44-076845, N44-077116, 
N44-077120 and N44-099300 in an agricultural use district as provided by Ohio 
Revised Code Section 929.02 are hereby approved; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 









                                              PUBLIC HEARING 
 
                                      RESOLUTION NO. R-64 -12 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RENEWAL 
APPLICATION FOR PLACEMENT OF FARMLAND 
IN AN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT FILED BY 
JAMES A. HIEGEL FOR PARCEL #N44-095820  
IN THE CITY OF PIQUA 

 
 
 WHEREAS, James A. Hiegel has submitted a renewal application to 
designate parcel # N44-095820 (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”) as an agricultural 
use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, parcel # N44-095820 is devoted exclusively for agricultural use; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the placement of this property in an agricultural use district will 
not adversely impact the City of Piqua’s development needs; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The renewal application to place parcel #N44-095820 in an 
agricultural use district as provided by Ohio Revised Code Section 929.02 is hereby 
approved; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 









RESOLUTION NO. R-65-12 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2012 COMMUNITY HOUSING 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM APPLICATION AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

SUBMIT THE APPLICATION 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is a unit of local government that possesses the legal 
authority to apply for Small Cities Community Housing Improvement Program funds available 
through the State of Ohio, authorized under the Housing and Community Development Act of 
1974, as amended, and the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has housing and community development needs that can be 
improved and alleviated with State assistance;  

 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is eligible for $500,000 in Fiscal Year 2012 Community 
Housing Improvement Program funds, through a competitive program and depending upon 
available funding;  

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Commission of the City of Piqua, a majority of 
members agreeing hereto that: 

 SEC. 1:  The Fiscal Year 2012 Community Housing Improvement Program is hereby 
approved and Gary A. Huff, City Manager, is hereby authorized and directed to submit the 
City’s program application to the Ohio Department of Development, including all understandings 
and assurances therein on or before the due date of April 2, 2012. 

 SEC. 2:  Gary A. Huff, City Manager, is to be the designated agent of the program 
in connection with the application and is authorized to execute all agreements in conjunction with 
the Fiscal Year 2012 Community Housing Improvement Program. 

 SEC. 3:  The proposed program will include the following activities. 

1. Private Owner Rehabilitation Activity, 4 units, Maximum Hard Cost Assistance of 
$30,000 per unit.  Maximum assistance for document recording, inspections, lead 
testing and other costs of $5,000 per unit.  Total maximum assistance of $35,000 per 
unit. 

2. Emergency Monthly Housing Assistance Activity, 100 units, Maximum Assistance of 
$1,200 per unit.  Counseling to be provided for each unit at a cost not to exceed 
$17,000. 

3. Home Repair Activity, 12 units, Maximum Hard Cost Assistance of $8,000 per unit.  
Maximum assistance for document recording, inspections, lead testing and other soft 
costs of $2,416 per unit.  Total maximum assistance of $10,416 per unit. 



4. New Construction Activity, 2 unit, Maximum Hard Cost Assistance of $20,000 per unit 
and Maximum assistance for document recording, inspections, lead testing and other 
soft costs at $2,000 per unit.  Total maximum assistance of $22,000 per unit 

5. Demolition Activity, 1 unit, Maximum Hard Cost Assistance of $8,000.   
6. Fair Housing Education and Outreach at a cost not to exceed $2,500. 
7. General Administration of the program not to exceed at $46,000. 

SEC. 4:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 

      _________________________________ 

      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 

Passed:  ________________________ 

Attest:  ________________________ 

  REBECCA J. COOL 

CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 

 

 

 



 

Item # 6
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
March 20, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Approving the Fiscal Year 2012 Community Housing Improvement 
Program Application and Authorizing the City Manager to Submit the 
Application. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department: Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X  Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:  

 
Resolution #: No. R-65-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X  City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
X  Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
X  Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Since 2001, the City of Piqua has received over $2.5 million in competitive grant 
funding to administer our local Community Housing Improvement Program.  This 
fiscal year, the City of Piqua has been invited by the Ohio Department of 
Development to apply for $500,000 for providing housing opportunities to low 
to moderate income households. 
 
The City of Piqua is required to undertake a comprehensive public participation 
process in developing the application.  A public meeting was held on February 
13th where representatives from human service organizations, the local landlord 
association, realtors and the general public was invited to participate.  Through 
a prescribed process from the Ohio Department of Development, the individuals 
in that meeting prioritized the activities proposed in the application. 
 
Those activities rated as High were:  Emergency Monthly Housing Assistance, 
Home Repair, Private Owner Rehabilitation 
 
Those activities rated as Medium were:  New Construction, Demolition, and 
Tenant Based Rental Assistance  
 
Those activities rated as Low were:  Homebuyer Counseling 
 
Those activities rated as Very Low were:  Rental Rehabilitation 
 
A second public meeting was held on March 8th where individuals could comment 
on the final application.   



It should be noted that this year, funding for the Community Housing 
Improvement Program is extremely competitive.  The funding for this program 
ultimately comes from Federal appropriations for the CDBG and HOME 
programs.  The Ohio Department of Development had their CDBG allocations cut 
by 8% and their HOME allocations cut by 37%.  This means that the expected 
number of grantees is going to be cut from approximately 80 in 2010 to 50 this 
year.   
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $0 
Expenditure $:  $0 
Source of Funds:   
Narrative:  There is no budgetary impact on the filing of the application.  

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt the Resolution and file the application. 
2. Deny the Resolution and reject the application and provide further direction. 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The City should be aware of whether this competitive application was approved 
later this fall and will begin implementing the program in January 2013.  All 
projects in this grant cycle will be completed by October 2014. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt the resolution which would 
allow for the filing of the application with the Ohio Department of Development.   

ATTACHMENTS   

 



 
RESOLUTION NO. R-66-12 

 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE TAX 

INCENTIVE REVIEW COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PIQUA FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE CITY OF PIQUA’S ENTERPRISE ZONE 

PROGRAM, AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 5709.85(C)(1) OF THE OHIO 
REVISED CODE 

 
WHEREAS, the Tax Incentive Review Council of the City of Piqua met on 

Wednesday, March 7, 2012 for the purpose of reviewing and making 
recommendations to the City Commission of the City of Piqua in the 
administration of the City of Piqua’s Enterprise Zone Program; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Tax Incentive Review Council has recommended the 
continuation of the tax incentives provided to the following company in the City of 
Piqua:  Crane Pumps and Systems, Inc.; now, 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
a majority of members agreeing hereto that: 
 

SEC. 1.  The tax incentives provided to Crane Pumps and Systems, Inc., 
be continued through the City of Piqua’s Enterprise Zone Program be continued. 
 

SEC. 2.  This Resolution shall be in effect from the earliest time allowed 
by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
  
PASSED:________________ 
 
ATTEST: ________________ 
      REBECCA J. COOL 
                CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



 

Item # 7
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
March 20, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Accepting the Recommendations of the Tax Incentive Review Council 
of the City of Piqua for the Purpose of the Administration of the City of Piqua’s 
Enterprise Zone Program, as Required by Section 5709.85(c)(1) of the Ohio 
Revised Code  

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  William Lutz 
Department: Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:  

 
Resolution #: R-66-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
X Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
X Department Director;  X Other:  Tax Incentive Review Council  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Since 1996, the City of Piqua has worked with industrial and commercial 
concerns to enter into ten separate Enterprise Zone agreements with businesses 
making extensive capital improvements within their businesses.  These 
agreements provided real and personal property tax exemptions for these 
businesses with the postulate that such realized tax savings would increase 
employments and real and personal property tax investment in the community. 
 
Each Enterprise Zone agreement is reviewed on an annual basis by the City’s 
Tax Incentive Review Council.  The Council is made up of members appointed by 
the County Commission, the City Commission, the Upper Valley Joint Vocational 
District, the Piqua City School District and the County Auditor.   
 
The City of Piqua’s Tax Incentive Review Council met on March 8, 0212 for the 
purpose of reviewing the one current agreement and providing a 
recommendation to the City Commission.  The only existing agreement is with 
Crane Pumps and Systems.  This business received their Enterprise Zone 
agreement in 2002 and it is slated to expire this year.  The agreement outlined 
that the company would make a capital investment of $427,000 and create and 
retain a combination of 302 jobs at their two locations in Piqua.  The business 
reported that they have made a capital investment of $3.85 million and has 
created or retained a combination of 241 jobs.   
 
The Tax Incentive Review Council noted that while the business is not at their 
pledged level of employment, the business did far exceed their expected level 
of capital expenditures than pledged.  The council also noted that when the 



agreement was made in 2002, the economic environment was more favorable 
than it is today and that Crane Pumps and Systems should not be penalized for 
not having the employment levels that were originally pledged.  The company 
has reported that is has saved $141,181 in personal property tax payments 
since 2002 due to the agreement.  The Tax Incentive Review Council recommends 
to the City Commission that the Crane Pumps and Systems Enterprise Zone 
agreement continue. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  None 
Expenditure $:  None 
Source of Funds: None 
Narrative:  None 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the Resolution, accept the recommendations, and authorizing the 
filing of the annual report with the Ohio Department of Development 

2. Deny the Resolution, deny the recommendations and do not authorize the 
filing of the report.  Please note:  Failure of the City to file the report will 
cause the Ohio Department of Development to possibly fine the City 
$1,000.00 each day the report is not filed after April 1, 2012. 

3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The Tax Incentive Review Council met on March 8, 2012.  The last Enterprise 
Zone Agreement expires this year and the Tax Incentive Review Council will hold 
their last meeting during the First Quarter of 2013. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

City Staff recommends the approval of the Resolution, the acceptance of the 
recommendations and the filing of the annual report with the Ohio Department 
of Development. 

ATTACHMENTS   

 



                                       RESOLUTION NO. R-67-12 
 
 

                            A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                         TO THE COMMUNITY DIVERSITY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: David Zimmerman is hereby appointed as a member of the 
Community Diversity Committee for a term of two (2) years to expire on March 1, 
2014 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified;  
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                       RESOLUTION  NO. R-68-12 
 
 

                            A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                         TO THE COMMUNITY DIVERSITY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Doug Smith is hereby appointed as a member of the 
Community Diversity Committee for a term of one (1) year to expire on March 1, 
2013 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified;  
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                       RESOLUTION NO. R-69-12 
 
 

   A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                                     TO THE ENERGY BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Joe Drapp is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term of 
Mike Cox as a member of the Energy Board for a term to expire on March 1, 2016 or 
until his successor is confirmed and qualified;  
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



RESOLUTION  NO. R-70-12 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO 
ENTER INTO A MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT WITH THE 
OHIO WATER/WASTEWATER AGENCY RESPONSE 
NETWORK 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network was 
established to create a formal policy for utilities to provide mutual aid;  

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua recognizes the advantages of networking with 
neighboring water/wastewater utilities and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1:  The Commission hereby deems it advantageous to join the 
Ohio Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network 

 SEC. 2:  The City Manager or his duly authorized representative(s) 
are authorized to enter into a mutual aid agreement with the Ohio Water/Wastewater 
Agency Response Network; 

 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 
 

(Shou

 

 
AG

 
 

O

 

(Incl

 

ME

RE
uld match reso

SU

GENDA CLA

RDINANCE/R

APPROVA

BA
ludes descriptio

a

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL
olution/ordinanc

title

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

RESOLUTIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN
on, background
and justification

 

 
E 

 
March 2

E 
ce 
e) 

 

 
A Resolu
with the 

Y 
Name &
Departm

N 
 

Conse

N 
 
 
 

 
1st Re

 
Ordinanc

S 
City M
Asst. 
Depar

 
D 
d, 
n) 

 

 
The Ohi
OHWAR
“utilities
emergen
strengthe
disaster 
utilities w

• A
a

• A
a

• T
h

• A
r

By joinin
utilities a
specializ
generato
disaster. 
increase
the even
Budgete

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

20, 2012 

ution reques
Ohio Water

& Title: Todd
ment: Underg

ent 

eading 

ce #:      
Manager 
City Manag
rtment Direc

o Water/Wa
RN, is a state
s helping util
ncy. Ohio WA
en the abiliti
recovery sce
with: 

A Mutual Ai
among water
A mutual ass
and assistanc
The resource
human-cause
A forum for 
relationships
ng Ohio WA
allowing res
zed pump pa
ors and pump

Membershi
s our reliabil

nt of a catastr
d $:  $

mmissi
ff Repo

sting authoriz
r/Wastewate

d Brandenbur
ground Utilit

 
Ordinanc

 
2nd Read

ger/Developm
ctor 

astewater Ag
ewide Water
lities” to pre
ARN is Ohi
ies of valuab
enarios. Ohio

d Agreemen
r and wastew
sistance prog
ce programs 
es to respond
ed disaster. 
developing a
. 

ARN, the Cit
source sharin
art in invento
ping equipm
p with Ohio
lity to provid
rophe. 
$0.00 

ion Ag
ort 

zation to ent
er Agency Re

urg, Undergro
ties 

ce 
 

ding 
 

 
Re

ment 

gency Respo
r/Wastewate
epare for the 
io’s response
ble water and
o WARN pr

nt and proces
water agencie
gram consist
and the Nat

d and recove

and maintain

ty of Piqua w
ng opportuni
ory at the Cit

ment from the
o WARN dec
de essential 

genda  

ter into a Mu
esponse Net

ound Utilitie

Resolution 

3rd Reading

esolution #: R
Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other:     

nse Network
er Agency R

next natural
e to a nationw
d wastewate
rovides wate

ss for sharin
es statewide
tent with oth
tional Incide
er more quick

ning emerge

will open do
ities from sim
ty of Hamilt
e City of New
creases the c
water and w

Item 

          

utual Aid Ag
twork. 

es Superinten

 
Re

g 
 
 

R-70-12 
Manager/Fin
or 
  

k, also know
Response Net

l or human-c
wide initiati
r infrastructu

er and wastew

ng emergency
. 

her statewide
nt Managem
kly from a n

ency contacts

ors with nei
mple items s
ton to emerg
wark during

city’s vulnera
wastewater se

# 11

 

greement 

ndent 

gular 

nance 

wn as 
twork of 
caused 
ve to 
ure in 
water 

y resources 

e mutual aid 
ment System.
natural or 

s and 

ghboring 
such as a 
gency 
g a city-wide
ability and 
ervices in 

. 



BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Expenditure $:  $0.00 
Source of Funds:       
Narrative:  At this time, there are no fees associated with joining Ohio 

WARN. As stated in Article VII (Cost Reimbursement), 
requesting members must reimburse responding members 
according to terms specified therein. Expenses will only be 
incurred in the event of a response to a request for 
assistance. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the Resolution requesting authorization to enter into a Mutual Aid 
Agreement with the Ohio Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network. 

2. Do not approve the Resolution and rely upon the City of Piqua’s material 
inventory, personnel, and equipment to provide water and wastewater 
services during a natural or human-caused emergency. 

3.  
4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
Document processing and program implementation/administration would begin 
immediately. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approval of the Resolution to authorize the City Manager or his duly authorized 
designee to enter into a Mutual Aid Agreement with the Ohio 
Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network. 

ATTACHMENTS  Ohio WARN Mutual Aid Agreement 
Ohio WARN Membership List 

 



























 
RESOLUTION NO.  R-71-12 

 
A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH BEST 
EQUIPMENT CO., INC., FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 
2012 SEWER MAINLINE CCTV INSPECTION UNIT 

 
 WHEREAS, the current CCTV Sewer Inspection Unit in service by the 
Underground Utilities Department has been determined to be obsolete and in need 
of replacement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after evaluation of CCTV sewer inspection systems available 
through the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Agreement the Utility Department 
has made the following recommendation; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The Commission hereby deems it necessary to replace the 
sewer mainline CCTV inspection unit and purchase the necessary equipment. 
 
 SEC. 2: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Best Equipment Co., 
Inc., for equipment, truck, and chassis for a total not to exceed $159,742.81. 
 
 SEC. 3: The Finance Director is authorized to draw her warrant on the 
appropriate account of the City treasury in payment for said equipment purchase. 
 
 SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
 

(Shou

 

 
AG

 
 

O

 

(Incl

ME

RE
uld match reso

SU

GENDA CLA

RDINANCE/R

APPROVA

BA
ludes descriptio

a

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL
olution/ordinanc

title

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

RESOLUTIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN
on, background
and justification

 

 
E 

 
March 2

E 
ce 
e) 

 

 
A Resolu
Equipme
Inspectio

Y 
Name &
Departm

N 
 

Conse

N 
 
 
 

 
1st Re

 
Ordinanc

S 
City M
Asst. 
Depar

 
D 
d, 
n) 

 

 
The curr
Utilities 
expense.
cab and 
opened I
receipt a
purchase
not inclu
 
The CCT
in the 20
Departm
of Ohio 
equipme
and Env
the Envi
 
This pur
collectio
includes
within a 
and repo
extensiv
wastewa

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

20, 2012 

ution reques
ent Co., Inc.
on Unit. 

& Title: Todd
ment: Underg

ent 

eading 

ce #:      
Manager 
City Manag
rtment Direc

rent CCTV S
Department

. Although th
chassis is a 
IFB 1114 for
and opening 
e due to pote
uded in the 2

TV Sewer In
012 capital b

ment staff nar
Purchasing C

ent and featu
irosight CCT
irosight Rovv

rchase has ca
on systems an
 all material
14’ cut-awa

ort defects w
vely utilized t
ater collectio

mmissi
ff Repo

sting authoriz
, for the purc

d Brandenbur
ground Utilit

 
Ordinanc

 
2nd Read

ger/Developm
ctor 

Sewer Inspec
t has proved 
he camera eq
1984 model.
r the purcha
of the sealed

ential financi
2011 capital 

nspection Un
budget for th
rrowed their
Contracts an

ures based up
TV Units, U
verX System

apabilities of
nd will be ut
s and labor n

ay box van a
within our bur

to locate sou
on system an

ion Ag
ort 

zation to ent
chase of a 20

urg, Undergro
ties 

ce 
 

ding 
 

 
Re

ment 

ction Unit in
to be obsole

quipment m
. In June of 2
se of a CCT
d bids, city s
ial issues alo
budget.  

nit replacem
he amount of
r selection do
nd vendors w
pon City of P

Underground 
m will best su

f inspecting 
tilized in bot
necessary to

along with th
ried infrastru
urces of inflo
nd make nece

genda  

ter into an A
012 Sewer M

ound Utilitie

Resolution 

3rd Reading

esolution No
Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other:     

n service by 
ete and a chr

mounted on th
2011, the Ci

TV Sewer Ins
staff made a 
ong with the

ment was reco
f $160,000. U
own to two (
were invited 
Piqua needs.
Utilities sta
uit the needs

wastewater 
th systems. T

o install the r
he necessary 
ucture. This 
ow and infilt
essary repair

Item 

          

Agreement w
Mainline CC

es Superinten

 
Re

g 
 
 

o. #: R-71-12
Manager/Fin
or 
  

the Undergr
ronic mainte
he truck date
ity of Piqua p
spection Uni
decision to 

e fact that thi

ommended a
Underground
(2) units, bot
to demonstr
. Upon revie

aff has determ
s of our oper

and stormw
The Enviros
required com
software to 
purchase wi
tration withi
rs to assist th

# 12

 

with Best 
CTV 

ndent 

gular 

2 
nance 

round 
enance 
es 1993, the 
publicly 
it. Upon 
postpone the
is item was 

and approved
d Utilities 
th on State 
rate their 
ew of Cues 
mined that 
rations. 

ater 
sight System
mponents 

document 
ill be 
in the city’s 
he 

e 

d 

m 



Wastewater Treatment Plant in reducing wet weather flow events and SSOs.  
 

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $160,000 
Expenditure $:  $149,743 
Source of Funds: Local 
Narrative:  The quote that we have received from Envirosight lists the 

total package at $149,742.81. We are requesting that the 
approval include an additional $10,000.00 as budgeted for 
available options once the truck build begins. These options 
include additional tool and equipment storage along with 
special fixtures that will increase the crew’s efficiency and 
effectiveness in the field. These additional options will not 
be determined until we meet with build center staff to make 
these adjustments. Due to the versatility of this purchase, 
funding has been split 50/50 between the Wastewater (404) 
and Stormwater (411) funds with $80,000 reserved in each 
capital budget. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the Resolution and enter into an agreement with Best Equipment 
Co., Inc., to purchase a 2012 Envirosight RovverX Sewer Mainline 
Inspection Unit. 

2. Do not approve the resolution and continue to operate the current, obsolete 
unit only during emergency situations. This will cause the sewer inspection 
preventative maintenance program to fall behind and increase equipment 
maintenance expenses.   

3.       
4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
The purchase of this unit will begin immediately upon approval with expected 
delivery to occur 90 days from the issue of a purchase order. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approval of the Resolution to enter into an agreement with Best Equipment Co., 
Inc., to purchase the proposed sewer inspection unit. 

ATTACHMENTS  Price Quotation and Specifications from Best Equipment Co., Inc. 
State Purchasing Contract # STS670 

 














